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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to this hearing on the Committee on

          4  Governmental Operations. I am Simcha Felder, Chair

          5  of the Committee, and I am joined by DeNora

          6  Getachew, the Counsel to the Committee, who is

          7  standing under the clock, and Israel Rodriguez, who

          8  is across the street hanging up a sign to make sure

          9  that no one else remains there and comes here,

         10  Policy Analyst to the Committee, and also to my

         11  right is my Communications Director Eric Quo.

         12                 Today the Committee will consider two

         13  bills of which I am the prime sponsor. Intro. No.

         14  4643, and proposed Intro. No. 6518. First proposed

         15  Intro. No. 651-A. This is a bill that was introduced

         16  by request of the Mayor, which would amend the

         17  Administrative Code of the City of New York with

         18  respect to campaign finance.

         19                 Specifically this bill would make

         20  various substantive and technical amendments to the

         21  Campaign Finance Reform Bill passed by this

         22  Committee in June of this year to clarify the law

         23  and ensure: 1) that the contribution limits

         24  applicable to those doing business with the City

         25  apply for the entire election cycle. In fact, it
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          2  makes sense.

          3                 Some times laws don't make sense,

          4  this one makes sense. That should be consistent and

          5  that the matching contribution should be consistent.

          6  And that clearly, I would say, was the intent of the

          7  law certainly. Unfortunately, we didn't get the

          8  language down exactly then but we're going to fix it

          9  now.

         10                 Two, the matching level of six to

         11  one, up to $175 would be retroactively applied from

         12  the start of the current election cycle. And, again,

         13  that makes sense, it's consistent. Three of the

         14  exemptions from doing business restrictions from the

         15  doing business restrictions for affordable housing

         16  developers would only apply to those developers who

         17  participate in an as-of-right nondiscretionary

         18  affordable housing program, or those which do not

         19  involve significant discretion by HPD or other City

         20  agencies in awarding a benefit.

         21                 This bill has additional provisions,

         22  included specifically at the request of the Mayor.

         23  Given that representatives of the Administration are

         24  here with us today, I will defer any further

         25  explanation -- I will defer any other further
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          2  explanation of these provisions and the reasons that

          3  the Administration feels that they are necessary to

          4  their testimony, which we will hear momentarily.

          5                 After hearing testimony regarding

          6  proposed Intro. No. 651-A, the Committee will hear

          7  testimony on Intro. No. 643, which I also sponsored.

          8                 Intro. No. 643 would amend the City

          9  Administrative Procedure Act, also known as CAPA,

         10  require that agencies electronically transmit copies

         11  of proposed rules in a timely manner.

         12                 While this bill is not as technical

         13  in nature or nearly as long as the Campaign Finance

         14  Bill, it is an important bill for this Committee to

         15  consider, because it would notify and it would

         16  modify the existing CAPA notice requirements to

         17  ensure that the Council and other interested parties

         18  receive notice of agencies' proposed rules in a

         19  timely and efficient manner.

         20                 Currently CAPA requires agencies to

         21  provide notice of proposed rules to the Council, the

         22  Corporation Counsel, each Council member, the chairs

         23  of all community boards, the news media and civic

         24  organizations. Unfortunately, however, very often

         25  these parties do not receive the required notice
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          2  until the commencement, after the commencement on

          3  the comment period on the proposed rule. This does

          4  not, and I emphasize, this does not conform with the

          5  purpose of CAPA which is to ensure that these

          6  parties would be able to meaningfully participate in

          7  the agencies' rule-making process. If it's almost

          8  over, there is no point. It's done. It's a done

          9  deal.

         10                 Intro. No. 643 would remedy this

         11  problem by mandating that agencies electronically

         12  submit, you know, copies, transmit copies of a

         13  proposed rule and an adopted emergency rule to the

         14  Council and the parties mentioned earlier, no later

         15  than when the agency transmits the proposed rules or

         16  adopted emergency to the City Record for publication

         17  as required by CAPA. And if it can get done for the

         18  City Record, it shouldn't be that difficult to

         19  notify the other parties that are supposed to be

         20  notified.

         21                 Before we begin today's formal

         22  hearing, I'd like to emphasize that it is my policy

         23  as Chair of the Governmental Operations Committee to

         24  ensure that my hearings begin on time, and I

         25  apologize for starting five, seven minutes late. And
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          2  therefore, it is my rule that only those individuals

          3  that sign up to testify within the first 15 minutes

          4  of the start of this hearing will be permitted to

          5  testify.

          6                 Additionally, I ask witnesses to

          7  refrain from repeating points made by previous

          8  witnesses. If someone has adequately made the point

          9  that you wish to make, it will suffice to note your

         10  agreement, or you could say that something like if I

         11  had only asked you to testify first, you would have

         12  been able to make the point first and now it's not

         13  fair, something like that, but no one wants to hear

         14  the same thing twice.

         15                 And with that, before I call the

         16  witnesses, I just want to mention that somebody

         17  questioned whether I have the authority to have this

         18  rule that is not in place in most of the Committees.

         19  We did some research and I thought it was a good

         20  question.

         21                 We did some research and in fact,

         22  under the rules the Chair of the Committee is not

         23  obligated to allow anybody to testify. So, I don't

         24  think it's a deep Talmudic deduction to say that if

         25  I'm not obligated to allow anybody to testify, I
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          2  certainly don't have to allow somebody to testify if

          3  they come late. I just don't think it's fair to the

          4  people who are here. And if somebody is interested,

          5  they should make it here on time.

          6                 That doesn't mean to say that if

          7  somebody comes in and says they were held up in

          8  traffic or they call in advance and say they'd like

          9  to testify but they can't make it til an hour into

         10  the meeting, we will accommodate anybody, you know,

         11  try to accommodate anybody. The purpose is so that

         12  if this Committee is called Government Operations

         13  and we can't run this Committee efficiently, then

         14  what am I doing here?

         15                 The first witness is Amy Loprest from

         16   -- no, my mistake. I'm sorry. The first witness is

         17  Amy Loprest. And as usual, if you can identify

         18  yourself and if you're willing to say good morning,

         19  that's also fine. Whoever else answers any questions

         20  should identify themselves.

         21                 MS. LOPREST: Good morning, Chairman

         22  Felder and Committee members -- oh, no Committee

         23  members here yet. I am Amy Loprest, the Executive

         24  Director of the New York City Campaign Finance

         25  Board. With me is our newly appointed Deputy
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          2  Executive Director, Shauna Denkensohn. Ms.

          3  Denkensohn has taken over for Carole Campolo, who

          4  recently retired. Also with me is General Counsel

          5  Sue Ellen Dodell. I am here to testify today on

          6  Intro. No. 651-A.

          7                 We would like to thank the Council

          8  and the Council staff for soliciting our

          9  participation and feedback throughout the entire

         10  legislative process. We believe Intro. No. 651-A

         11  will largely resolve the technical problems

         12  contained in Local Law 34.

         13                 We have in the past raised concerns

         14  about Local Law 34's treatment of so-called exempt

         15  expenditures which Intro. No. 651-A will not change.

         16                 In the interest of providing clarity

         17  and simplicity to the law, in its latest

         18  post-election report the Board recommended

         19  eliminating most of these exemptions, specifically

         20  the blanket exemptions for petitioning and

         21  compliance. To compensate, and ensure campaigns

         22  could continue to make reasonable and necessary

         23  expenditures on compliance and other hard-to-predict

         24  expenses within the spending limits, we recommended

         25  increasing the limit by a modest amount.
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          2                 The Council agreed with our

          3  recommendation in substance, and responded by

          4  including provisions in Local Law 34 that we believe

          5  narrow these exemptions substantially. At the same

          6  time, the law increased the spending limits by

          7  roughly 7.5 percent, which is a greater proportion

          8  than the typical campaign has claimed as exempt.

          9                 The Board believes the language of

         10  Local Law 34, regarding the new exemptions does not

         11  provide the level of clarity we sought, particularly

         12  with regard to expenses for the post-election audit.

         13  However, the Committee report for Local Law 34

         14  reflects our shared understanding on this point.

         15                 To clarify, post-election spending

         16  has never counted towards the limit. The

         17  post-election audit begins after the election, and

         18  expenditures made to prepare the response have

         19  therefore been and will continue to be exempt from

         20  the spending limits.

         21                 As in the past, the Board will

         22  construe the exemptions contained in Local Law 34

         23  narrowly to ensure that no participating campaign is

         24  allowed to gain an unfair advantage by conducting

         25  activities beyond what is allowed under the spending
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          2  limits.

          3                 The Board will promulgate rules

          4  reflecting our common understanding of the law's

          5  intent as well as the need to provide campaigns with

          6  clear guidance.

          7                 We are pleased to report that much

          8  progress has been made towards the implementation of

          9  those sections of Local Law 34 dealing with persons

         10  and entities doing business with the City, and I

         11  believe you will hear more about this from the

         12  Administration.

         13                 The CFB staff is working closely with

         14  the Mayor's Office of Contract Services and DoITT to

         15  meet the law's deadline for completion of the first

         16  phase of the unified doing business database. A

         17  meeting of the Board has been scheduled for January

         18  3rd, 2008, the certification date contemplated in

         19  the law, and the Board anticipates issuing its

         20  certification report in conjunction with that

         21  meeting. Groundwork is also being laid for the

         22  subsequent phases of the doing business database.

         23                 We are also happy to announce that

         24  the CFB staff has completed a redesign of our

         25  Candidate Software, C-SMART, for the 2009 election.
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          2  Several enhancements to the software were added in

          3  response to comments made by candidates after the

          4  2005 election.

          5                 The new version of the software

          6  allows candidates to synchronize their disclosure

          7  and write checks with widely used bookkeeping

          8  applications QuickBooks and Microsoft Money, and

          9  gives them the ability to import records from other

         10  sources, such as contributions received through a

         11  campaign website.

         12                 The new software also contains a

         13  fundraising module that will help candidates better

         14  manage their tracking of contributor information,

         15  and can easily produce and print letters to campaign

         16  contributors. It has a new, modern look and feel

         17  that should be more user-friendly and easier on the

         18  eye.

         19                 We have initiated a pilot program

         20  with seven currently active 2009 campaigns to test

         21  the new software for the January 15th, 2008 filing.

         22                 Despite the complexity of the new

         23  law, we are working very hard to make compliance as

         24  simple as possible for all candidates. As you know,

         25  the CFB is preparing to expand our staff to meet the
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          2  new and significant mandates contained in Local Law

          3  34. We are pleased to have the continued support of

          4  the Council as we structure our agency to implement

          5  those important reforms.

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  testify today, and I look forward to answering any

          8  questions you may have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 I have to step across to vote and

         12  Councilman Addabbo will be chairing the meeting.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good

         15  morning, everyone. Thanks to Chair Felder for

         16  putting me in this situation here.

         17                 Again, I want to thank you very much

         18  for your time and testimony. What cost of savings

         19  will CFB encounter by going from the four-to-one

         20  matching to the six-to-one, as far as you know?

         21                 MS. LOPREST: Well, it will probably

         22  be about the same, because the total amount per

         23  claim is about the same amount. So, there is not

         24  going to be a cost savings for public funds because

         25  each claim will be worth basically the same amount,
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          2  four-to-one to 250, six-to-one to 175. The amount of

          3  matching funds for each claim is about the same.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do you

          5  see that same answer five, ten, 15 years from now?

          6  Again, do you see a change possibly in the future?

          7                 MS. LOPREST: I mean, it's hard to

          8  predict. Obviously when the matching rate when from

          9  one-to-one to 1,000 to four-to-one to 250, in fairly

         10  short order the most common or the most frequent

         11  contribution size went to $250. So, I anticipate

         12  that that same event will happen with the change to

         13  the maximum claim being 175 that in short order the

         14  most frequent contribution size will be 175. But

         15  it's hard to predict the future. But after, as you

         16  know, after each election cycle the law contemplates

         17  that the Board reviews the entire, how the law

         18  worked for the entire election cycle, and makes

         19  recommendations for change, and that, the cost

         20  increase and the cost in public funds is one of the

         21  things that's always tracked in that report.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You

         23  mentioned it just a second ago, do you feel that

         24  this kind of review is a healthy discussion to have,

         25  is a good thing to have to review certain, even the
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          2  four-to-one and six-to-one, in other words, do you

          3  think this is a healthy discussion to have and to

          4  make these reviews perodically?

          5                 MS. LOPREST: Yes. I think it's

          6  probably one of the great points of the Campaign

          7  Finance Act is that they put into this law this

          8  mandated periodic review. I think that's great.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And

         10  again, we all agree with the mandates, correct?

         11                 MS. LOPREST: Yes.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. Any

         13  other questions from my colleagues? We have been

         14  joined by Council Member Larry Seabrook. Mr.

         15  Seabrook. And Council Member Dilan is entering the

         16  Chambers. Don't be shy. All you need is a chair to

         17  switch, right? And we've been rejoined by Council

         18  Member Simcha Felder, our Chair. Thank God.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Are you concerned

         20  at all about the Administration's request for an

         21  extension on the implementation of the date for

         22  doing business component related to senior

         23  managements' capacity?

         24                 MS. LOPREST: No. I mean, as I've

         25  said, we've been working very closely with the
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          2  people from MOCs and from DoITT and, you know, they

          3  have been working very, very hard on meeting the

          4  obligations and I'm sure that Marla Simpson will

          5  talk about what they've been doing. But they have

          6  been working very hard and that's, you know, one

          7  small component of the database. So, a great

          8  majority of the information will be available at the

          9  first phase.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And finally, the

         11  Administration recommended a waiver process, for

         12  compliance with doing business requirements for

         13  those vendors that refuse to comply with Vendex, but

         14  that the City needs to contract with the vendor for

         15  goods, services or construction emergency situations

         16  for security-related reasons or goods, services or

         17  construction essential to government operations; are

         18  you concerned about this waiver?

         19                 MS. LOPREST: I'm not sure what is

         20  contemplated. I look forward to hearing more of the

         21  testimony about what they're contemplating in this

         22  waiver process.

         23                 You know, this is the advantage where

         24  I went first and I haven't heard her testimony. So,

         25  I don't know, and we don't really have any comments
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          2  about it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So the last

          4  question I asked, you don't have an answer yet?

          5                 MS. LOPREST: In Local Law 34 there

          6  was a waiver always and I think that this, I mean

          7  the way I read it, flushes out how it will be

          8  applied. I mean, it depends on -- I mean, I will

          9  listen to what Marla has to say about that, but --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, you know

         11  what? Since you're going to be here listening,

         12  DeNora, I think we should give the Chair Amy

         13  Loprest, you know, we'll give you an opportunity to

         14  come back to testify on this question once they're

         15  done, okay?

         16                 MS. LOPREST: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         18  much for your testimony.

         19                 We're now going to hear from Marla

         20  Simpson, the Director of the Mayor's Office of

         21  Contract Services.

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: Good morning. Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair. I am Marla Simpson. I am the Director of

         24  the Mayor's Office of Contract Services and the

         25  City's Chief Procurement Officer. I want to

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  apologize that I am not yet joined by Anthony

          3  Crowell, Counselor to the Mayor. We are hopeful that

          4  he will be available very soon. He has been

          5  unavoidably detained with the Mayor.

          6                 I am very delighted to have the

          7  opportunity today to testify before this Committee

          8  to discuss the various amendments that we have

          9  proposed for the City's landmark Pay to Play

         10  legislation, which was Local Law 34 of 2007.

         11                 Local Law 34, passed by the Council

         12  and signed by the Mayor in July of this year, as you

         13  know mandates the creation of a doing business

         14  database containing the names of entities and people

         15  who are considered to be doing business with the

         16  City for purposes of enforcing the new limitations

         17  on campaign contributions.

         18                 My office, the Mayor's Office of

         19  Contract Services, or MOCs, was given the primary

         20  responsibility to gather and process the information

         21  required to be contained in the database.

         22                 Local Law 34 is to be implemented in

         23  three phases, corresponding to different types of

         24  transactions that are considered business dealings

         25  with the City.
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          2                 At the start of each phase, as noted

          3  in the prior testimony, the Department of

          4  Information, Technology and Telecommunications,

          5  DoITT, and the Campaign Finance Board, must certify

          6  that the database for that particular phase is

          7  reasonably complete so that the law can be enforced.

          8                 I am pleased to report that we are

          9  well on our way to completing the database for Phase

         10  1 of the law, which commences on January 3rd of

         11  2008, and will cover current City contracts,

         12  franchises and concessions.

         13                 In order to create that initial

         14  database, MOCs formed and staffed a new unit, the

         15  Doing Business Accountability Project. I'm joined

         16  here today by Jessie Shaffer, who is the Project

         17  Director for the DBA Project, as we call it.

         18                 In the past five months, the DBA

         19  Project has processed more than 300,000 procurements

         20  from 186 agencies that are covered by Local Law 34.

         21  I will note that as City Chief Procurement Officer,

         22  this is a very exciting development, in and of

         23  itself, since we have never before had comprehensive

         24  data on so broad an array of agencies.

         25                 In addition, the DBA project has
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          2  identified 3,500 vendors that will be considered as

          3  doing business with the City as of that January 3rd

          4  Phase 1 target date, and the project has sent

          5  mailings to all of those 3,500 vendors to confirm or

          6  obtain the names of their principal officers, owners

          7  and senior managers.

          8                 As of yesterday, we have received

          9  replies from 1,759 or approximately 50 percent of

         10  the 3,500 letters mailed. About three-quarters of

         11  those were already registered with their data on the

         12  City's Vendex database. The letters that we sent

         13  them simply asked them to confirm the Officer and

         14  owner names that we had in Vendex, and informed them

         15  that in the absence of a reply we would use the

         16  Vendex data and then in addition asked for new

         17  information concerning the names of their senior

         18  managers, which do not exist in our Vendex system.

         19                 For about 25 percent of the 3,500

         20  vendors covered by Local Law 34, they are not

         21  already registered in Vendex so we sent letters

         22  requesting that they supply all of the necessary

         23  printable information.

         24                 Throughout December we will continue

         25  to mail to those vendors and to place follow-up
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          2  calls to any who have not yet responded. As a result

          3  of our efforts to date, we now have information on

          4  the principal owners and officers, either from

          5  Vendex or from the mailing for more than 87 percent

          6  of the vendors. We expect the number to exceed 92

          7  percent by the end of December. Considering that at

          8  this point we have no real enforcement mechanism

          9  because the law has not yet gone into effect, we are

         10  very pleased with the data collection result thus

         11  far, and we believe we will attain the reasonably

         12  complete standard for most categories of vendors and

         13  principals.

         14                 For the narrow category of senior

         15  managers who have historically not been listed in

         16  Vendex, we are not likely to meet the January 3rd

         17  target date for substantial completeness. Although,

         18  and let me be clear, we are well underway, thus far

         19  our mailings and phone calls have yielded

         20  approximately 40 percent of the needed data and we

         21  are working to secure the remaining 60 percent as

         22  rapidly as possible.

         23                 As you know, Local Law 34 was drafted

         24  with a phased approach. The inclusion of the names

         25  of entities and principals who do business with --
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          2  who seek business from the City, those who proposes

          3  but may not actually be awarded a contract, does not

          4  occur until July 3rd. The main reason for that delay

          5  was the recognition at the outset, at the time we

          6  drafted Local Law 34 in conjunction with the

          7  Council, that the City has no preexisting sources of

          8  data such as Vendex, to obtain information on the

          9  principals of unsuccessful proposers. Instead we

         10  must collect that proposer information from scratch.

         11                 To do that, we need to incorporate a

         12  request for such information into our contract

         13  solicitation process, so that proposers will have to

         14  supply it up front in order to have their proposals

         15  considered.

         16                 The DBA project, working closely with

         17  the City's Law Department, has already begun

         18  modifying all City agency solicitations for that

         19  purpose, so that when July 3rd rolls around, we will

         20  be able to supply a reasonably complete database on

         21  this point, as well.

         22                 For the same reasons that Local Law

         23  34 has a delayed effectiveness date for proposers,

         24  Intro. 651 is now before you seeking to amend the

         25  requirement for senior manager data. Just as the
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          2  City has no preexisting source of data for the names

          3  of the principals of unsuccessful proposers, so, too

          4  we have no source for the names of senior managers.

          5                 Although we did not initially

          6  recognize how much of the process of setting up the

          7  database would be hampered by the fact that senior

          8  managers are not listed in Vendex, we now believe

          9  that it is important to make this amendment to the

         10  Local Law 34 schedule so that manager data would be

         11  available in Phase 2 as of July 3rd, rather than

         12  January 3rd.

         13                 We are nonetheless confident that

         14  even without the senior manager data, the January

         15  3rd version of the database will still contain

         16  information plainly sufficient to meet Local Law

         17  34's ambitious goal of curbing Pay to Play practices

         18  by those who do business with the City, if for no

         19  other reason than it will contain the names of the

         20  entities, officers and owners to whom all of the

         21  senior managers report.

         22                 During Phase 1, MOCs will be able to

         23  compel all of the entities that are newly awarded

         24  contract franchises and concessions to provide all

         25  the required information, including the names of
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          2  their manager.

          3                 Thus, for the awards that are made

          4  from January 3rd on, we anticipate a much higher

          5  compliance rate. As no new awards will be processed

          6  without complete Local Law 34 data.

          7                 Meanwhile, we will continue to pursue

          8  the senior manager information for vendors holding

          9  contracts that were awarded before January 3rd, and

         10  we are confident that with those added months we can

         11  move the completion rate for the pre-existing

         12  vendors to an acceptable level.

         13                 Another amendment included in Intro.

         14  651 that I'd like to discuss this morning is the one

         15  that would allow the City Chief Procurement Officer

         16  to promulgate rules to permit in certain narrow

         17  circumstances the compliance with Local Law 34 to be

         18  waived. Before any such waiver would be considered,

         19  MOCs would have to show that we have already made

         20  substantial efforts to obtain full compliance with

         21  the required disclosures. But if those efforts prove

         22  fruitless, the City must retain a mechanism to allow

         23  agencies to make essential purchases.

         24                 As the amendment provides, a waiver

         25  could only be granted upon a finding both that the
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          2  agency had a compelling need for the purchase and

          3  that it had no reasonable alternative.

          4                 Waiver applications would be reported

          5  to the Campaign Finance Board at least ten days

          6  prior to any action to grant or deny them, and any

          7  entity that eventually received a waiver would be

          8  listed on both the MOCs and CFB websites so that the

          9  public would be aware of the possibility that

         10  contributions by individuals affiliated by those

         11  vendors would continue, or could continue to be

         12  made.

         13                 The Vendex Statute contains a similar

         14  authorization, authorizing the procurement policy

         15  board or the PPB to establish a rules-based waiver

         16  process for Vendex.

         17                 The PPB exercised that authority more

         18  than a decade ago upon notice to the Council as

         19  required by the Vendex Statute. From time to time,

         20  as City Chief Procurement Officer I now grant Vendex

         21  waivers under those PPB rules. The waiver provisions

         22  for Vendex are very rarely invoked and the parallel

         23  waiver process that's been proposed for Local Law 34

         24  data, is even more narrowly drawn and much more

         25  transparent.
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          2                 I'll give an example of a

          3  circumstance that might support a waiver. If we have

          4  a situation where an agency needs to make a purchase

          5  that is critical to public health or safety and has

          6  only a sole source vendor as their option, and

          7  particularly when that entity, that sole source, is

          8  a privately held company that is not required to

          9  disclose its ownership in any other context. We

         10  could find that such an entity may readily give us

         11  the information on who its senior managers and

         12  officers are, but might resist supplying ownership

         13  data because that would make non-public information

         14  accessible to the public.

         15                 On occasion, that has arisen in

         16  Vendex when a foreign entity holds all or partial

         17  ownership of a US-based subsidiary, but it should be

         18  noted that citizens from foreign entities are

         19  otherwise barred from making campaign contributions.

         20                 Another example that is specifically

         21  listed in 651 would be for entities whose inclusion

         22  in the database results from the City's exercise of

         23  eminent domain, inasmuch as their status as an

         24  entity doing business with the City is not voluntary

         25  on their part, they may well not cooperate our
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          2  efforts to collect their data. That said, I must

          3  emphasize that all of our vendor contacts to date,

          4  and as you heard earlier, we have had thousands of

          5  vendor contacts, have not yielded any instances of

          6  outright refusal to provide the necessary data.

          7                 Based on our experience with Vendex,

          8  which requests much more intrusive information on

          9  vendors and their principals, while we view the

         10  waiver provisions included in Intro. 651 as

         11  essential, we do not expect to invoke them on more

         12  than a handful of occasions.

         13                 As I noted earlier, we are confident

         14  that with these amendments the doing business

         15  database will be certified by January 3rd and New

         16  York City's model campaign finance law will have

         17  been made even stronger.

         18                 Thank you, and I welcome any

         19  questions you may have at this time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. And I

         21  want to welcome our technology czar, Council Member

         22  Gale Brewer.

         23                 Councilman Joseph Addabbo has a

         24  question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chair. I thank your Committee for having this

          3  hearing today. Thank you very much for having you

          4  here as well for your testimony. It's a lot of work,

          5  you know, obviously implementing what we need to do,

          6  and this is a lot of work as explained in your

          7  testimony.

          8                 Do you see the need for requesting

          9  any extensions of time to getting all of the data

         10  and implement what we need to do?

         11                 MS. SIMPSON: Other than as proposed

         12  in 651 for one small category of data, no.

         13  Absolutely not.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Adequate

         15  staff? You're adequately staffed to gain all the

         16  information?

         17                 MS. SIMPSON: Yes, sir. The Mayor has

         18  taken great pains to make sure that this project is

         19  adequately staffed and we're moving gangbusters

         20  toward collection of all of that data.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Was staff

         22  recently hired over the past year and a half?

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: Oh, absolutely, yes.

         24  Staff was hired specifically for this project.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Do you know
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          2  how much? How many personnel?

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: To date we have the

          4  Project Director, three analysts and I believe, in

          5  terms of data entry staff that are fully committed

          6  to the project, three, with a fourth in process and

          7  the resources of my office, which I have several

          8  other large administrative data entry staffs in my

          9  office and on a swing basis we've made many other

         10  data entry people available.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Do you

         12  foresee additional hirings in the future, near

         13  future?

         14                 MS. SIMPSON: We have some other slots

         15  that are budgeted, and we intend to continue to hire

         16  on an as-needed basis.

         17                 I must emphasize, though, that the

         18  issue that's reflected in Intro. 651 is not impacted

         19  at all by the staffing level because it really has

         20  to do with the actions by the vendors, not our own

         21  actions. We've succeeded in getting multiple

         22  mailings to the vendors, there is no question that

         23  they've received the information, and we have made

         24  multiple rounds of phone calls to track down

         25  follow-up information, and we have a hot line that
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          2  the vendors can call us. And, so, again, we don't

          3  have an issue from a staffing standpoint on

          4  completion. It's more of a change in terms of the

          5  expectation or the culture for the vendors

          6  themselves. They're very used to seeing the City's

          7  Vendex forms and while the form for this law is

          8  much, much shorter and much less detailed, many

          9  vendors who get a form in the mail from the City

         10  think that it must just be some new version of

         11  Vendex.

         12                 So, we have to get out there and make

         13  it understood by the vendors that this is an

         14  additional separate form that we're asking them to

         15  reply to.

         16                 We made it as easy as possible. The

         17  form is prepopulated so that all the data that we

         18  have on Vendex is shown to the vendor so they don't

         19  have to fill in duplicate data that we already have

         20  and they're simply asked to confirm yes or no are

         21  these names correct, have they changed? And they

         22  give us the changes and we input the changes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Ms. Simpson,

         24  I thank you very much for the update, and I look

         25  forward to a periodic update as we have you come
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          2  before this Committee in the future.

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: We would be happy to do

          4  that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          8                 Council Member Brewer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you. So,

         10  I'll call Jessie, Jessie, Jessie.

         11                 What is the way in which it's

         12  updated? In other words, as you know, I have a lot

         13  of my own less complicated databases but I have a

         14  lot of them. How do you update it? What is the

         15  responsibility for the vendor and for the City?

         16                 MS. SIMPSON: What we are doing will

         17  serve two issues in terms of updating, and let me

         18  make sure I address what your concern is. One issue

         19  is as the transactions themselves change, and there

         20  we draw, Jessie would probably know more accurately,

         21  but we draw a majority of the data from the City's

         22  Financial Management System, and for those agencies

         23  that are not on the Financial Management System,

         24  we're establishing with DoITT's help separate

         25  pipelines to get those updates on at least a monthly
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          2  basis, as Local Law 34 requires.

          3                 Now, since we haven't yet hit the

          4  January 3rd date, that monthly update process hasn't

          5  occurred yet, because we're basically working now on

          6  those contracts that were awarded say for the past,

          7  you know, whatever it is, decade or more and that

          8  happen to be open and that will be open still on

          9  January 3rd. So, we have a known universe that we're

         10  working with now and our goal is to merge the data

         11  from all of the different sources where it lives to

         12  put it into a single database, the doing business

         13  database.

         14                 When a principal or an owner or an

         15  officer or a manager changes in an individual

         16  vendor, we're also establishing a process for those

         17  kinds of updates.

         18                 Much like happens with Vendex, the

         19  critical time frame when you ask that question is

         20  when the actual item is coming through the process.

         21  So, for Phase 1, when we're dealing with only

         22  awards, we will update that information prior to the

         23  completion of the award process, for most agencies

         24  that means the contract is being registered by the

         25  City's Comptroller, so right before registration,
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          2  that would be updated. The proposal, it would be

          3  done at the time of proposal, but that doesn't kick

          4  in until Phase 2 in July.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. There is

          6  a question here you may have answered about

          7  affordable housing exemptions, did you already

          8  discuss that?

          9                 MS. SIMPSON: I did not. That is one

         10  of the topics that Anthony Crowell has been more

         11  involved in than I. But go ahead and ask the

         12  question and I will either know the answer or I will

         13  get you the answer.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well, the

         15  answer (sic) is has the exemption that is contained

         16  in the bill different from the law passed in June?

         17  And then what types of actions are covered?

         18                 MS. SIMPSON: Primarily, as I

         19  understand the distinction, the distinction is that

         20  for those types of affordable housing transactions

         21  where discretion, substantial discretion is at

         22  stake, those transactions would be covered. Whereas,

         23  the transactions that are basically

         24  non-discretionary or predominantly non-discretionary

         25  would be taken out of -- much as competitive-sealed
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          2  bids are already taken out of the law.

          3                 In terms of what the distinction is,

          4  Jess, do you want to comment on that?

          5                 MR. SHAEFFER: The original bill

          6  listed --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: You have to

          8  say who you are, Jessie.

          9                 MR. SHAEFFER: I'm Jessie Shaeffer.

         10  I'm the Project Director for the Doing Business

         11  Accountability Project.

         12                 The original bill listed very

         13  specific exemptions. It detailed quite a large

         14  number of them. The amendment authorizes HPD to

         15  establish, to promulgate rules, plays out that the

         16  intent of those rules is to make sure, as Marla just

         17  said, that only discretionary, significant

         18  discretionary items in the area of affordable

         19  housing are included and the others are excluded.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I kind of

         21  understand. I just hope that people in the field

         22  understand. So, I guess that's part of education.

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: And also part of the

         24  CAPA process. We'd be I think very interested in

         25  working with not only the City Council but housing

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  organizations and advocates during the CAPA process,

          3  because there will be rules generated by HPD and we

          4  need to get the word out on how those, and let them

          5  comment at that time.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, thank

          7  you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: How many vendors

          9  during the past fiscal year would you say were

         10  non-compliant with the Vendex requirements that fit

         11  into the exception you mentioned?

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: Under a dozen. Perhaps

         13  about five.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And the whole

         15  universe is?

         16                 MS. SIMPSON: Oh, in terms of Vendex

         17  waivers?

         18                 Roughly, yes, there are some standard

         19  waivers that have been issued for many years for,

         20  for example, not-for-profits that are controlled by

         21  the City. Technically an organization like the

         22  Brooklyn Navy Yard or EDC are technically shown in

         23  the City system as vendors, and so, absent a waiver,

         24  they would all be required and their boards would be

         25  required to do Vendex.
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          2                 Since we have all the information

          3  that Vendex would give us on all of those board

          4  members who are City officials anyway, there's been

          5  some standing waivers for City not-for-profits for

          6  many years. When you take those out of the mix, my

          7  guess is we do, again, somewhere between three and

          8  ten per year, tops.

          9                 Oh, out of how many vendors? Again, I

         10  don't recall the exact number of open contract

         11  vendors at any one time. It's somewhere in the

         12  neighborhood of eight- or nine-thousand, I think.

         13                 And the numbers that I know from the

         14  Vendex system, again, just to go back to my

         15  testimony, we've never before had, prior to Local

         16  Law 34, we have never had cumulative numbers that

         17  included such entities as the Housing Authority,

         18  HHC, SCA, the Department of Ed. Our numbers in the

         19  past have been just the agencies that are subject to

         20  the PPB rules, and that's 45 Mayoral agencies.

         21                 We're now looking at data from 186.

         22  So, again, the number of vendors that are out there

         23  are probably higher than I'm used to reporting when

         24  I report on just the PPB agencies.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: In terms of the
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          2  practical effect, would that mean they have a waiver

          3  but they would still be obligated under the law in

          4  terms of the contribution restrictions, but you just

          5  couldn't include them into the database, or they

          6  would just be exempt?

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, going back to my

          8  hypothetical of the company that doesn't want to

          9  disclose owners, and I think of all of the

         10  circumstances that we face, the one that's the most

         11  likely to happen will be a privately held company

         12  that objects to making a disclosure of its

         13  ownership.

         14                 What will happen there is you will

         15  have the name of the entity, you will probably, and

         16  you will certainly have senior managers, because in

         17  order to do a contract with us, we have to know who

         18  their senior manager is, and you will probably have

         19  the officers, because typically we will organize a

         20  US or a New York-based subsidiary and we will have

         21  the officers' names. So, you will know most of the

         22  people who could conceivably make contributions that

         23  would influence the process and they will be on the

         24  database, and the name of the company will be on the

         25  database, and then if we give them a waiver for the
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          2  disclosure of owners, there will be a posted entry

          3  on our website that says, you know, in effect,

          4  attention world, here is a company that did not

          5  disclose its owners.

          6                 So, you would have the tools if you

          7  were a member of the public, investigator of some

          8  sort, a reporter, or you could begin to pursue,

          9  okay, are we suddenly getting a donation that might

         10  be affiliated with that company from the owners who

         11  we don't know who their names are. I mean, there

         12  would be some basis to guess at least, but they

         13  would be restricted as the people that they

         14  disclose, and that would always include the

         15  managers, because it's not possible to get a

         16  contract with the City without knowing the managers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: But even those

         18  that were not disclosed would be obligated under the

         19  law. The same restrictions would exist, we just

         20  don't have that information.

         21                 MS. SIMPSON: That's right. So, again

         22  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm being a

         24  little picky, because there is a distinction between

         25  us not being able to force them to give us the
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          2  information --

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: -- And if somehow

          5  we're able to get the information, whether they

          6  know, even if we don't know who they are, whether

          7  they know that they are not permitted?

          8                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't know, and I

          9  guess I will defer again to the Campaign Finance

         10  Board. I know we're adding some reference to the

         11  contributor card?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: If you could

         13  approach the bench, and speak into the mic. No, you

         14  don't have to bend down, sit down.

         15                 MS. LOPREST: No, it's okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, no, no, no.

         17  Not in my house. Sit down.

         18                 MS. LOPREST: Actually, this is an

         19  interesting question and I think we would have to

         20  look into it, whether or not, I will have to look at

         21  how the law is drafted, about the contribution

         22  limits, whether or not it applies only to people who

         23  are in the doing business database, so once people

         24  are waived from being in the database, then they are

         25  waived from all the requirements, or whether you're
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          2  bound by all the requirements, you're just waived

          3  from being in the database, and I don't know, I

          4  would have to review the language of the law to

          5  understand whether which scenario would apply.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, now that

          7  you're here I would ask you, if you do your research

          8  and in fact find out that it's only those that are

          9  on the database, how would you feel to the proposal?

         10                 MS. LOPREST: Well, I mean, as I said,

         11  I mean as Ms. Simpson described, the waiver process

         12  seems very narrowly drawn, you know, appears will be

         13  very rarely -- whether it's rarely applied. You

         14  know, there is significant public disclosure of the

         15  people who get the waiver both on the MOCs website

         16  and on the CFB's website, and, you know, as I spoke

         17  about with Councilman Addabbo, you know, this law,

         18  the doing business law, has its own special review

         19  process for after the election, and this is one of

         20  the issues. If the waiver number is much higher than

         21  MOCs traditional experience with Vendex waivers,

         22  then that would be something that would be commented

         23  on, I think we would have to wait and see.

         24                 The way the law, the Intro. 651-A

         25  reads, it's that these people are applying for a
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          2  waiver from inclusion in the doing business

          3  database. Again, that doesn't fully answer the

          4  question about whether being waived from inclusion

          5  in the doing business database waives you from the

          6  contribution limits, and we'll look into that and

          7  get back to you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Because I would

          9  just say, if it doesn't waive that party, then it's

         10  less of an issue. But if it does waive that party, I

         11  know that's not the intent but it almost seems as

         12  though somebody -- the City is stuck in needing

         13  services that they can't get elsewhere and as a

         14  result of that then everything is okay. That doesn't

         15  make much sense. If, in fact, it's the other way

         16  around, then we understand that the City needed the

         17  services, you know, they can't get the information,

         18  but people know that whether we have the information

         19  now, maybe we could get the information later, and

         20  if you're in violation of the law, you know, in some

         21  way, ultimately you know things may not be good.

         22                 MS. LOPREST: Well, as you know, I

         23  mean the Campaign Finance Board only has

         24  jurisdiction over the candidates, and the only

         25  sanction that we could possibly impose is a sanction
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          2  on someone, you know, a contribution from someone

          3  who otherwise is prohibited. But I mean, we will

          4  look into the particular question about whether or

          5  not, you know, if you're waived from it being in the

          6  database, whether or not that means you're waived

          7  from the contribution prohibitions in the law.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I think I would

          9  appreciate it very much, because I think it's very,

         10  very important. We certainly don't want to have

         11  situations where people are faced, even if it's not

         12  the candidates, faced with a problem that they never

         13  anticipated. You know, one way or the other it

         14  should just be clear.

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: We will look at this

         16  more closely, but in Section 2 of the bill it does

         17  appear that the language on barring the contribution

         18  applies to anyone who is doing business, who is

         19  defined as doing business. It doesn't appear to be

         20  linked to the actual inclusion in the database. So,

         21  if that individual said on a card that they were

         22  doing business, then that contribution would not be

         23  matchable. And if they were asked the question on

         24  the card and didn't tell the truth, then at least in

         25  theory that could come out in a later investigation
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          2  or audit.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: That would seem

          4  to be very consistent and make a lot more sense and

          5  solve a lot of problems.

          6                 Now that you're there, if you could

          7  respond to the question that I had asked you

          8  earlier, now that you've heard the testimony?

          9                 MS. LOPREST: Well, my answer is very

         10  similar to what was just said, is that I think that,

         11  you know, based on the testimony that, you know,

         12  this waiver provision is very narrowly drawn, it's

         13  going to be rarely applied, that there is

         14  significant public disclosure of those who have the

         15  waiver both on the CFB and MOCs' websites and that

         16  there is a review process for the entire law

         17  contemplated in Local Law 34. I think that there is

         18  -- you know, really this waiver process is not

         19  really a problem.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         21  much, and thank you for your testimony.

         22                 Now, Ms. Simpson, you said that Mr.

         23  Crowell couldn't make it but he has some written

         24  testimony?

         25                 MS. SIMPSON: No, he was going to be
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          2  available for questions and answers. The testimony

          3  is solely mine, and I do apologize again that he has

          4  been unavoidably detained.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We're not going

          6  to close the hearing until he comes, because I know

          7  that he'll be disappointed, all right?

          8                 MS. SIMPSON: I will let him know, and

          9  I will let the Sergeant-At-Arms know if it's going

         10  to be a delay that's inordinate.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, the

         12  Sergeant-At-Arms for us.

         13                 MS. SIMPSON: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You work with

         15  him.

         16                 MS. SIMPSON: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Tell him that

         18  we're going to wait here til --

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: You're going to wait

         20  here, okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Til Passover, if

         22  necessary.

         23                 Thank you for your testimony.

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We've been joined
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          2  by Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr.

          3                 I'd like to call Rachael Fauss from

          4  Citizens Union and Dan Jacoby from Democracy for New

          5  York City to testify.

          6                 So the way we're going to do this, I

          7  see that Ms. Fauss is testifying about two items, so

          8  we're going to first do all the testimony on the

          9  Campaign Finance.

         10                 MS. FAUSS: Sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: All right? And

         12  then you'll have an opportunity to testify on the

         13  others. And I want to thank the Campaign Finance

         14  Board for coming. I appreciate it very much. And for

         15  making sure that somebody on your staff remains.

         16                 You can begin.

         17                 MS. FAUSS: Thank you.

         18                 Good morning, Chair Felder, and

         19  members of the Governmental Operations Committee. My

         20  name is Rachael Fauss and I am the Policy and

         21  Research Associate of Citizens' Union of the City of

         22  New York, an independent non-partisan civic

         23  organization of New Yorkers who promote good

         24  government and advance political reform in our City

         25  and State. In appearing before you today, Citizens'
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          2  Union expresses support for the Intro that makes

          3  necessary technical changes to the reform law passed

          4  earlier this year to strengthen the Campaign Finance

          5  Program, largely by increasing the importance of

          6  smaller donors and limiting the influence in

          7  elections of those who do business with the City.

          8                 We find no problem with the

          9  clarification and tightening of the law that these

         10  changes represent. In restricting the practice of

         11  Pay To Play, Citizens' Union wants to ensure that it

         12  is sound and enforceable and doesn't place undue and

         13  unnecessary burdens on the City's oversight role and

         14  unintentionally restrict from those who do business

         15  with the City as a matter of obligation through

         16  various programs, specifically the development of

         17  affordable housing.

         18                 We urge the Council to pass this

         19  intro.

         20                 Okay, I'm going to move on to our

         21  testimony on the other matter at this point.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We will hear from

         23  Mr. Jacoby --

         24                 MS. FAUSS: Okay. Sorry, I

         25  misunderstood. Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Mr. Jacoby.

          3                 MR. JACOBY: Thank you. My name is Dan

          4  Jacoby. I'm with Democracy for New York City. Intro.

          5  586, which is now Local Law 34, was very hastily

          6  written, swiftly passed, people didn't get a real

          7  chance to figure out what it all said, and as a

          8  result we've got 651, most of which just cleans up

          9  the language and technical problems, and you've

         10  talked about it. And if that's all 651 were, I would

         11  urge swift passage, no problem. But there are

         12  substantial changes in the law made by 651 and I

         13  think we can tell from the testimony from the CFB

         14  and from the Chief Procurement Officer that we're

         15  not all certain exactly what those changes are and

         16  how they would affect the law. So, I think that we

         17  might want to slow down a little bit on that part of

         18  it, maybe split it out, whatever you find best,

         19  until we really understand what it is we're passing.

         20                 In addition, I want to stress that

         21  these attempts to lower the influence of the big

         22  money special interest, what they've been calling

         23  "Pay To Play," it's not really going to work. First

         24  of all, more money, far more money comes through

         25  bundling then directly from people doing business
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          2  with the City. And I'm referring to an actual CFB

          3  report issued a year and a half ago on the doing

          4  business contributions.

          5                 The other thing is that there is

          6  always loopholes, and one example is a 100-year-old

          7  loophole and that's that employees, the senior

          8  management and other people will funnel their

          9  contributions to lower level employees. It's been

         10  going on for 100 years, since the passage of the

         11  Tilman Act. There is nothing new there. It's still

         12  going on. It's very difficult to ferret out. It's

         13  almost impossible to catch, and it gets around the

         14  very thing you're trying to stop here with both

         15  Local Law 34 and Intro. 651. My point is it's not

         16  going to work. And it's well intentioned, it's well

         17  thought out, but it's not going to work.

         18                 The real thing we need to do is pass

         19  something that's simpler, it's effective, that is

         20  working, and that's the Clean Money Clean Election

         21  system that's working in Maine, it's working in

         22  Arizona, it's significantly reducing the power of

         23  the rich lobbyists and special interests, it's a

         24  much simpler system to follow. There will be a bill

         25  introduced as soon as we can get it finished and I
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          2  urge its swift passage.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Mr. Jacoby,

          5  what's your solution to the bundling law?

          6                 MR. JACOBY: Well, I don't think there

          7  is one. And I think that's why both 586 and 651

          8  simply don't try, because how can you? You've got

          9  reporting requirements and you're trying to tighten

         10  them and everybody is trying to tighten the

         11  reporting requirements, but the fact is people get

         12  around it. You've got the House Party exemption, for

         13  example. It's easy to get around any kind of

         14  requirement.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Mr. Jacoby, do

         16  you know of any localities that have implemented

         17  your suggestions?

         18                 MR. JACOBY: Yes, the states of Maine

         19  and Arizona.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm talking about

         21  localities.

         22                 MR. JACOBY: Portland Oregon,

         23  Albuquerque New Mexico.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. Any others?

         25                 MR. JACOBY: There are other places
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          2  that have implemented some portion of it. They've

          3  been going back and forth for some elections and

          4  others, but those are the main places.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, it seems

          6  clear that with your diligence that Governor Spitzer

          7  is going to pass this legislation that you're

          8  suggesting.

          9                 MR. JACOBY: We hope so.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, we don't want

         11  to waste City money by doing it twice.

         12                 MR. JACOBY: Well, the Governor's plan

         13  will only work for State elections. It won't affect

         14  City elections.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Oh, I see. So, in

         16  other words, you would like New York City to be

         17  like, what did you say those two towns?

         18                 MR. JACOBY: Albuquerque and Portland,

         19  yes. Well, actually we'd be bigger and therefore

         20  more well known.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.

         22                 How much would it cost the City to do

         23  this?

         24                 MR. JACOBY: I don't think anybody has

         25  done an exact figure. My best estimate so far is it
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          2  would probably come out to about, maybe as much as

          3  $10 million a year --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No.

          5                 MR. JACOBY: Over what we're spending

          6  already.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So how much?

          8                 MR. JACOBY: Over about 40 million per

          9  four-year cycle over what we're spending already on

         10  the matching fund system.

         11                 I should point out, though, that when

         12  you look at what's going on, for example, in

         13  Arizona, where they're realizing now a great deal

         14  more revenue from their annual land sales because

         15  the lobbyists who used to drive the prices down no

         16  longer have the power. So, Arizona is realizing a

         17  great deal of extra revenue. There is other

         18  expenditures they don't have to make because they

         19  don't have to deal with the special interests who

         20  contribute to lots of campaigns.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: All right. Well,

         22  I appreciate your testimony, and I think that some

         23  believe term limits was a good thing or a bad thing.

         24  Term limits will ensure that your suggestion, if and

         25  when it gets done, will have to be handled by the
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          2  next City Council because it involves a lot of work.

          3  But we appreciate your comments.

          4                 MR. JACOBY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And if the

          6  Citizens' Union wishes to testify on the other item,

          7  we would be very happy.

          8                 MS. FAUSS: Thank you.

          9                 The other item is on requiring all

         10  City agencies to electronically transmit copies of

         11  proposals in a timely manner, as you know. And in

         12  appearing before you today we also support Intro.

         13  643. We believe that it will improve communication

         14  about an awareness of rules proposed --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Could I interrupt

         16  you, please, for a moment?

         17                 MS. FAUSS: Sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I've been told

         19  that I messed up again.

         20                 So, I just for the record want to say

         21  that the testimony that we're about to hear relates

         22  to Intro. 643, so that transcripts will show that.

         23                 MS. FAUSS: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I apologize.

         25                 MS. FAUSS: No problem.
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          2                 Okay, as I was stating, we believe it

          3  will improve communication and awareness of rules

          4  proposed by City agencies.

          5                 It would also increase transparency

          6  about new rules that are being proposed and allow

          7  possibly for greater comment and input by the

          8  citizens of New York before the rules are

          9  promulgated.

         10                 The measure will aid in making the

         11  government of the City of New York more effective

         12  and accountable to New Yorkers. So, we urge this

         13  Council to pass Intro. 643.

         14                 Let me just state that in addition to

         15  my written testimony, this sort of prompted other

         16  thoughts of ways that we could use electronic

         17  transmission. Specifically we would support

         18  legislation that would allow electronic transmission

         19  of testimony from public hearings as well, and for

         20  testimony of hearings to be on the City Council

         21  website on line.

         22                 So, Chair Felder, and other members

         23  of the City Council, Citizens' Union thanks you for

         24  holding this important hearing and making it

         25  possible for us to express our views.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 I just want to for the record say

          6  that we have received written testimony from Anthony

          7  Crowell, who was concerned about my threat earlier

          8  and we are going to submit that into the record.

          9                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         10  questions?

         11                 Thank you very much. The hearing is

         12  hereby closed.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 11:07 a.m.)
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